MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE

HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER,

WALLFIELDS, HERTFORD ON

WEDNESDAY 23 MAY 2012, AT 7.00 PM

PRESENT: Councillor S Rutland-Barsby (Chairman).

Councillors M Alexander, E Bedford,

A Burlton, Mrs R Cheswright, G Lawrence, P Moore, M Newman, N Symonds and

G Williamson.

ALSO PRESENT:

Councillors D Andrews, W Ashley and P Ruffles.

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE:

Malcolm Amey - Arboricultural

Officer

Liz Aston - Development

Control Team

Leader

Glyn Day - Principal Planning

Enforcement

Officer

Peter Mannings - Democratic

Services Officer

Kevin Steptoe - Head of Planning

and Building

Control Services

Alison Young - Development

Control Manager

34 <u>APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIRMAN</u>

It was moved by Councillor M Alexander and seconded by Councillor S Rutland–Barsby that Councillor M Newman be appointed Vice–Chairman of the Development Control Committee for the 2012/13 civic year.

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, Councillor M Newman was appointed Vice—Chairman of the Development Control Committee for the 2012/13 civic year.

RESOLVED – that Councillor M Newman be appointed Vice–Chairman of the Development Control Committee for the 2012/13 civic year.

35 APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors D Andrews, S Bull, G Jones and T Page. It was noted that Councillors N Symonds and G Williamson were in attendance as substitutes for Councillors Jones and Andrews respectively.

36 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman welcomed the press and public to the meeting and those who were watching the live webcast.

The Chairman advised that the following applications had been withdrawn from the agenda:

a) 3/12/0427/FP – Conversion and extension of former coachworks to form 2 no. 3 – bedroom houses and ground floor retail unit with 10 no. apartments above and provision of 2 no. 3 bedroom houses on former car park site opposite former Waters Garage Site, 3-9, North Road, Hertford for Mr Tom Beynon; and b) 3/12/0428/LC – Demolition of existing structures at former Waters Garage Site, 3-9, North Road, Hertford for Mr Tom Beynon.

The Chairman welcomed the Committee to the first meeting of the new civic year and stated that she looked forward to working with Members.

The Chairman thanked the Head of Planning and Building

Control for the training session arranged by Officers prior to this meeting. Members were advised that further training would be arranged throughout the year in line with the training schedule that Members had been provided with in advance of this meeting.

37 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor S Rutland–Barsby declared a personal interest in applications 3/12/0252/FP and 3/12/0253/FP, in that she was acquainted with the applicant.

Councillor Mrs R Cheswright declared a personal interest in applications 3/11/2209/FP and 3/12/2210/LB, in that she lived near to the site.

38 MINUTES - 18 APRIL 2012

RESOLVED – that the Minutes of the meeting held on 18 April 2012 be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

A) 3/11/2209/FP – DEMOLITION OF EXISTING FARM BUILDINGS, CONVERSION AND EXTENSION OF LISTED BARN TO FORM 1 NO. DWELLING, ERECTION 27NO. DWELLINGS AND ASSOCIATED DEVELOPMENT AT PENTLOWS FARM, BRAUGHING FOR LINDEN HOMES; AND B) 3/11/2210/LB – DEMOLITION OF EXISTING FARM BUILDINGS, CONVERSION OF LISTED BARN TO PART DWELLING AT PENTLOWS FARM, BRAUGHING FOR LINDEN HOMES

Mr David Roberts addressed the Committee in opposition to the applications.

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, subject to the applicant entering into a legal agreement pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, in respect of applications 3/11/2209/FP and 3/11/2210/LB, planning permission and listed building consent be granted subject to the conditions now detailed.

The Director advised that the Council's Solicitor had commented that reference to intermediate affordable housing on page 13 of the report now submitted should have instead made reference to shared ownership.

The Director commented that the Solicitor had stated that there was insufficient information relating to the transfer of land between the developer and the Parish Council and further information in respect of this matter, including how the land will be used and maintenance contributions, should be submitted in order for the Section 106 agreement to be properly drafted.

The Director confirmed that a fallback position would need to be identified in any legal agreement should the Parish Council decide not to take ownership of the land.

The Council's Solicitor had also commented that further information relating to the maintenance costs associated with the balancing pond, future landscaped areas and private access road should be submitted in order for the Section 106 to be properly drafted. The Director confirmed that the Parish Council had indicated a willingness to fund the maintenance of the balancing pond.

Councillor Mrs R Cheswright expressed her concerns that another modern development of large houses with small rooms and gardens was being imposed on the old English village of Braughing.

Councillor Cheswright referred to a locally acknowledged need for smaller 2 to 3 bedroom properties and commented that the majority of houses in this proposed development were of 4 or more bedrooms.

Councillor Cheswright spoke against the numerous minor amendments that had been made to a number of applications, gradually increasing the size of the houses. She stated that the applicant should apply for the full proposed size of dwelling from the outset.

Councillor Cheswright stressed that any planning conditions must be realistic and enforceable. She also stated that off street parking by contractors' vehicles often meant that it was very difficult for pedestrians and vehicles to negotiate the B1368.

Councillor Cheswright was particularly concerned in respect of heavy goods vehicles using the narrow roads in the village, which were in close proximity to a number of listed buildings and where weight restrictions of 4.5 tons were in force.

Councillor Cheswright was also concerned in respect of the proposed siting and maintenance of the balancing pond, particularly as the Parish Council had requested that the pond's location be reviewed to allow for more burial plots in the churchyard.

Councillor Cheswright was further concerned regarding the potential loss of hedgerows and sycamore trees on the site. She stated that the homes must be built to lifetime home standards and must have wheelchair access.

Councillor Cheswright concluded that the Parish Council were concerned regarding the choice of planting being of a suburban nature rather than rural. She emphasised that the Section 106 legal agreement must be completely watertight in terms of the details referred to by the Director.

The Director advised Members that this site was an allocated site within the East Herts Local Plan Second Review April 2007. The Director confirmed it was the understanding of Officers that the balancing pond and the associated land would be transferred into the ownership of Braughing Parish Council.

In relation to wheelchair access, the Director advised that due to the topography of the site, whilst the frontage of a limited number of properties had stepped access, they complied with the appropriate building regulation requirements in that the rear of the properties benefited from level access.

The Director also advised that, whilst there would be no vehicular access between the north and south parts of the site, foot and cycle access was possible. The Landscape Officer had not felt strongly enough about the loss of the sycamore trees to resist the application on that basis.

The Director commented that, provided that traffic access was maintained on all roads close to the site, then the Council had very limited powers to act in respect of construction traffic and congestion.

In respect of construction traffic, there would be an element of disruption and Officers had attached a condition requiring that details of all construction vehicles be submitted to and agreed by Officers prior to the commencement of the development.

Councillor M Newman referred to policy OSV1 of the East Herts Local Plan Second Review April 2007. He stated that for category 1 villages such as Braughing, the policy stated that only limited small scale development was acceptable. The Policy also referred to the size of the village and given that Braughing was a small village, the numbers in a development should be towards the lower end of the scale, i.e. 15 dwellings or less.

Councillor Newman cast doubt on whether it was appropriate for this development to be approved, particularly when considering previous developments in Braughing. He queried whether the community infrastructure was in place to support a total of 60 houses from this development and previous developments in the village.

The Director advised that, in addition to allocated sites, there would inevitably be other developments coming forward that were not located on those sites. In formulating the East Herts Local Plan Second Review April 2007, the Council had assumed a development rate

of 100 dwellings per annum in this way.

Members were advised that the Authority should continue to have identified a 5 year supply of housing, as per the now superseded PPS3. The new National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) had applied further pressure by stating that a further 5% of land should be available in addition to the 5 year supply. The Director stated that that Authority had identified a 4.5 year supply in its most recent Annual Monitoring Report.

The Director reported that Braughing was a category 1 village so was a village on the larger end of the scale with a certain level of supporting infrastructure. Members were reminded that the legal agreement sought to secure the infrastructure required to support this development.

Councillor M Alexander raised a number of concerns relating to information that was outstanding, such as details regarding design and environmental quality, landscaping, planning out crime, wildlife habitats, particularly grass snakes, as well as the issue of the balancing pond.

Councillor P Moore commented that there were a number of unknown aspects in respect of this application and she was particularly concerned in respect of the limited facilities for the disabled. Councillor Moore was also concerned regarding the impact of the application if the Construction Method Statement was not adhered to.

Councillor A Burlton stated that the proposed above ground SUDs solution, as well as rainwater re-use systems, should be made mandatory for inclusion into the designs for this site, as this would greatly reduce the flood risk potential.

Councillor M Alexander proposed and Councillor Mrs R Cheswright seconded, a motion that applications 3/11/2209/FP and 3/11/2210/LB be deferred to enable Officers to seek further information in relation to a range of issues raised by the development proposals.

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, this motion was declared CARRIED.

The Committee rejected the recommendations of the Director of Neighbourhood Services that, subject to the applicant entering into a legal agreement pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, applications 3/11/2209/FP and 3/11/2210/LB be granted subject to the conditions now detailed, and agreed to defer the applications.

RESOLVED – that, in respect of applications 3/12/2209/FP and 3/11/2210/LB, these matters be deferred to enable Officers to seek further information in relation to a range of issues raised by the development proposals.

3/12/0314/FP – INSTALLATION OF A 2ND SYNTHETIC TURF PITCH ADJACENT TO EXISTING ARTIFICIAL SPORTS PITCHES/COURTS; INSTALLATION OF ADDITIONAL 6.5M HIGH BALL STOP NETTING TO PROTECT A NEW GRASS FOOTBALL PITCH TO BE MARKED ON LOWER QUITCHELLS PLAYING FIELD; CREATION OF TWO GRASSED RUGBY PITCHES AND CRICKET SQUARE WITH OUTFIELD ON HAILEY FIELD AT HAILEYBURY COLLEGE, HERTFORD, SG13 7NU FOR PAUL WATKINSON

Mr Tom Betts addressed the Committee in support of the application.

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of application 3/12/0314/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

The Director advised that the applicant's agent had confirmed that the school wished to use the synthetic turf pitch and floodlights for the same times as had been permitted for the existing pitch, i.e. 9.00 am to 10.00 pm daily.

Councillor Mrs R Cheswright stated that the proposed facilities would be of great benefit to students at Haileybury College.

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, the Committee supported the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services as now submitted.

RESOLVED – that in respect of application 3/12/0314/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

3/12/0355/FP – USE OF LAND FOR THE SITING OF A RESIDENTIAL MOBILE HOME IN THE FORM OF A LOG CABIN FOR A TEMPORARY 3 YEAR PERIOD FOR OCCUPATION BY A STOCKMAN AT DALMONDS WOOD FARM, MANGROVE LANE, BRICKENDON, HERTFORD, HERTFORDSHIRE, SG13 8QJ FOR EAMON BOURKE

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of application 3/12/0355/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

In response to a query from Councillor M Alexander, the Director stated that after the 3 years had expired for any planning approval on this application, the applicant would have to apply for a renewal of planning permission or apply for a new house on the site. Officers would then have the opportunity to judge whether this was justified on the site in relation to the viability of the business.

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, the Committee supported the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services as now submitted.

<u>RESOLVED</u> – that in respect of application 3/12/0355/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

3/12/0392/FP – TWO STOREY EXTENSION TO ROCHESTER HOUSE, PLUS CONSTRUCTION OF NEW DISABLED RAMP AND ENTRANCE STEPS AT HOCKERILL ANGLO-EUROPEAN COLLEGE, DUNMOW ROAD, BISHOP'S STORTFORD, CM23 5HX FOR HOCKERILL ANGLO-EUROPEAN COLLEGE

Mr S Dennis addressed the Committee in support of the application.

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of application 3/12/0392/FP, planning permission be refused for the reason detailed in the report now submitted.

In response to a query from Councillor A Burlton, the Director stated that, if there was the suggestion of Officers meeting with the applicant in respect of the aspirations of the application and further solutions for the site, then Members could support the Officers' recommendation for refusal and invite the applicant to meet with Officers.

Members could instead defer a decision to enable such discussions to take place, in order to achieve a greater respect of the character of Rochester House whilst adhering to the aspirations of the applicant.

Councillor M Newman commented that he was concerned that this application would adversely affect the symmetry of the frontage of the existing building. He concurred with the Officers' view that whilst the need for the extension to the building was acknowledged, these matters did not outweigh the harm that would be caused to the historical and architectural significance of the building.

Councillor A Burlton proposed and Councillor M Newman seconded, a motion that application 3/12/0392/FP be deferred to enable Officers to seek amendments to the scheme.

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, this motion was declared CARRIED.

The Committee rejected the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services as now submitted and agreed to defer the application.

RESOLVED – that in respect of application 3/12/0392/FP, the matter be deferred to enable Officers to seek amendments to the scheme.

3/12/0256/FP – CHANGE OF USE FROM INDUSTRIAL
(B1/B8) TO LEISURE (D2) FOR FAMILY ENTERTAINMENT
CENTRE TO ACCOMMODATE A CHILDRENS SOFT PLAY
VENUE AT 10 HASLEMERE INDUSTRIAL ESTATE, PIG
LANE, BISHOP'S STORTFORD, CM23 3HG FOR MR J
FOTHERGILL

Mr Gary Kemp addressed the Committee in opposition to the application.

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of application 3/12/0256/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

Councillor A Burlton commented that if the building was fully insulated and all the conditions were adhered to, then there should be no noise. He stated however, that in a metal storage style building such as this, it may not be possible to adequately insulate against noise.

Councillor Burlton raised concerns relating to car parking, although he acknowledged the presence of a car park at the end of the road where this site was located. He expressed concerns relating to the proposed hours of use being longer than any previous use of the site.

Councillor M Newman stressed that for any insulation to be effective, there must be a clearly defined decibel (dba) rating at a certain distance from the structure that was the subject of this application. The Director advised that condition 4 in the report now submitted had been put forward by the applicant and Officers would consult with environmental health to ensure that there was limited transmission of noise from the site.

Councillor Burlton commented on the likely transmission of noise once the doors to the outside were opened during periods of warm weather. Councillor G Williamson stated that users of the site would make a certain degree of noise when arriving outside the building and also when being picked up.

Councillor N Symonds was concerned relating to the level of traffic, both commercial and domestic, on what was a very narrow road. Councillor Symonds was also concerned in respect of the lack of parking provision and the likely parking habits of the people using the site.

The Director advised that condition 3 restricted the hours of use to less than what had been applied to a similar use on a site adjacent to the one that was the subject of this application. Councillor M Alexander stated that whilst he had no wish to restrict this type of use, he could not support this application.

The Director advised caution regarding resisting this application with regard to the hours of use given that similar applications with longer hours had been approved in units in close proximity to this site.

Councillor A Burlton proposed and Councillor M Alexander seconded, a motion that application 3/12/0256/FP be refused on the grounds that; the proposal failed to make adequate provision for pedestrian access to the building and therefore would result in direct conflict between pedestrians and general commercial traffic within the Industrial Estate, contrary to paragraph 35 of the National Planning Policy Framework; insufficient information had been submitted in relation to noise operated by the proposed use and any steps to be taken

to mitigate its impact, to enable the local planning authority to properly consider the impact of the development on neighbouring residential properties; and the proposal was contrary to policies ENV1 and ENV24 of the East Herts Local Plan Second Review April 2007.

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, this motion was declared CARRIED.

The Committee rejected the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services as now submitted.

<u>RESOLVED</u> – that in respect of application 3/12/0256/FP, planning permission be refused for the following reasons:

- The proposal fails to make adequate provision for pedestrian access to the building and therefore would result in direct conflict between pedestrians and general commercial traffic within the Industrial Estate, contrary to paragraph 35 of the National Planning Policy Framework.
- Insufficient information has been submitted in relation to noise operated by the proposed use and any steps to be taken to mitigate its impact, to enable the local planning authority to properly consider the impact of the development on neighbouring residential properties. The proposal would thereby be contrary to policies ENV1 and ENV24 of the East Herts Local Plan Second Review April 2007.
- A) 3/12/0252/FP DEMOLITION OF AN EXISTING PAIR OF SEMI DETACHED DWELLINGS AND ERECTION OF A SINGLE REPLACEMENT DWELLING FOR OCCUPATION BY AN AGRICULTURAL WORKER AT PLOT 1,PENNY ROYAL, BUCKS ALLEY, BAYFORD FOR MR ALAN FITZJOHN; AND (B 3/12/0253/FP-ERECTION OF DETACHED AGRICULTURAL WORKER'S DWELLING AT

PLOT 2, PENNY ROYAL, BUCKS ALLEY, BAYFORD FOR MR ALAN FITZJOHN

Jane Orsborn addressed the Committee in support of the applications.

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of applications 3/12/0252/FP and 3/12/0253/FP, planning permission be refused for the reasons detailed in the report now submitted.

The Director read out a statement on behalf of the local ward Member, Councillor L Haysey. Councillor Haysey referred to the letter from the applicant in that this set out the reasons why these applications should be approved.

The Director stated that Councillor Haysey had highlighted that Officers had acknowledged the need for the replacement dwellings. She emphasised that Officers felt that the replacement dwellings should occupy the existing footprint of the dwellings that would be demolished.

Councillor Haysey had stated that there were sound reasons as to why the second dwelling should be located in a new position on the site. Councillor Haysey also commented that the applicant and his structural engineer had felt that the Landscape Officer had not taken into account the reasons for the proposed siting of the two properties.

Councillor Haysey was of the view that these dwellings were necessary accommodation for workers in the agricultural sector and were not an unnecessary expansion of housing into the green belt. Councillor Haysey had urged the Committee to grant both applications.

In response to comments from Councillor Mrs R Cheswright relating to concerns from neighbours regarding loss of privacy, the Director stated that this should not be an issue as there were no windows facing numbers 3 and 4 Penny Royal.

Councillor M Newman referred to there being no objection in principle to the applications. He stated that building the plot 1 house towards the western extremity of the site would overcome any issues regarding the radius of influence of the trees.

Councillor Newman referred to the points mentioned in the report regarding alternative solutions to the problem of subsidence, other than the re-siting option put forward by the applicant. He commented that there were always structural solutions for overcoming such issues and he felt that the reasons for building away from the existing footprints were not overwhelming.

Councillor N Symonds concurred with the points raised by the local Member and stated that building additional properties on the sodden clay soil would result in lots of problems. She emphasised that the existing dwellings had a lot of cracks in the walls and were not fit for habitation.

The Director advised Members that there was an in principle objection to the building on plot 2 in the green belt. Members were advised however that there was no in principle objection to replacement dwellings. Officers had not been satisfied that sufficient information had been provided to justify the need for new dwellings on the site. The Director referred to a range of engineering solutions that could be put in place on the site.

Councillor M Alexander proposed and Councillor A Burlton seconded, a motion that the Committee support the Director's recommendations in respect of applications 3/12/0252/FP and 3/12/0253/FP.

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, this motion was declared CARRIED.

The Committee supported the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services as now submitted.

<u>RESOLVED</u> – that in respect of applications 3/12/0252/FP and 3/12/0253/FP, planning permission be refused for the reasons detailed in the report now submitted.

3/12/0200/FP – REPLACEMENT DWELLING AMENDED SCHEME WITH NEW LOCATION FOR REPLACEMENT DWELLING, INCORPORATING A REAR ORANGERY EXTENSION AND BASEMENT AT EPPING GREEN FARMHOUSE EPPING GREEN, HERTS SG13 8NE FOR MR L EAGLESTONE

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of application 3/12/0200/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, the Committee supported the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services as now submitted.

<u>RESOLVED</u> – that in respect of application 3/12/0200/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

3/12/0375/FN – SUBDIVISION OF EXISTING DWELLING INTO 5 DWELLINGS AND NEW GARAGES AT THORLEY PLACE, THORLEY LANE EAST, BISHOP'S STORTFORD CM23 4BH FOR MR N THURLEY

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of application 3/12/0375/FN, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, the Committee supported the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services as now submitted.

RESOLVED - that in respect of application

3/12/0375/FN, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

47 3/12/0467/FO – VARIATION OF CONDITION 2 OF LPA
REFERENCE 3/11/2050/FP (POSITIONING OF MARKET
STALLS IN NORTH STREET) TO ALTER HOURS FROM
05:00-16:00 TO 05:00-17:30 ON THURSDAYS AND
SATURDAYS AT NORTH STREET, BISHOP'S STORTFORD
FOR EAST HERTS DISTRICT COUNCIL

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of application 3/12/0467/FO, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, the Committee supported the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services as now submitted.

<u>RESOLVED</u> – that in respect of application 3/12/0467/FO, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

48 3/12/0328/FP – SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION, BOILER HOUSE WITH CHIMNEY AND CONVERSION OF GROUND FLOOR GARAGE SPACE AT WATTS FARM, ALBURY END, ALBURY FOR MR K DEWSON

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of application 3/12/0328/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, the Committee supported the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services as now submitted.

<u>RESOLVED</u> – that in respect of application 3/12/0328/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now

submitted.

3/12/0154/FP – TWO STOREY AND SINGLE STOREY SIDE EXTENSION AND SINGLE STOREY FRONT EXTENSION AT 1 FROGS HALL LANE, BROKEN GREEN, STANDON, WARE, SG11 1NG FOR MR C ROBERTS

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of application 3/12/0154/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, the Committee supported the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services as now submitted.

<u>RESOLVED</u> – that in respect of application 3/12/0154/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

3/12/0244/FP – FRONT, REAR AND SIDE SINGLE STOREY EXTENSIONS AND ROOF ALTERATION TO CREATE FIRST FLOOR ACCOMMODATION AT WHITE WILLOWS, THE STREET, HAULTWICK, WARE SG11 1JQ FOR MR R ADAMS

Mr Ross Adams addressed the Committee in support of the application.

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of application 3/12/0244/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, the Committee supported the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services as now submitted.

<u>RESOLVED</u> – that in respect of application 3/12/0244/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

51 E/11/0403/A – UNAUTHORISED USE OF UNITS FOR CLASS B2 (GENERAL INDUSTRIAL) USE AT UNITS 5A AND 5B, HADHAM INDUSTRIAL ESTATE, LITTLE HADHAM, HERTS, SG11 2DY

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of the site relating to E/11/0403/A, enforcement action be authorised on the basis now detailed.

The Committee accepted the Director's recommendation for enforcement action to be authorised in respect of the site relating to E/11/0403/A on the basis now detailed.

<u>RESOLVED</u> – that in respect of E/11/0403/A, the Director of Neighbourhood Services, in conjunction with the Director of Internal Services, be authorised to take enforcement action on the basis now detailed.

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER (TPO) – RESURVEY OF TPO NOS 49, 167, 171 AND 345

Lucy Evans addressed the Committee in opposition to the inclusion of tree 'T4' in TPO 569 at Saffron Meadow, Standon.

The Director of Neighbourhood Services submitted a report regarding the resurvey and revocation of Tree Preservation Orders (TPOs) numbered 49, 167, 171 and 345 as detailed in the report now submitted. The Director's report also requested the confirmation of replacement TPOs numbered 566, 567, 568 and 569.

The Director stated that the public speaker had objected to the inclusion of tree 'T4' in TPO 569 and Members could either resolve to remove this tree from the TPO or

the Committee could confirm the TPO, on the condition that a replacement tree be planted elsewhere at the property should the applicant be successful in applying to remove tree 'T4'.

Councillor D Andrews proposed and Councillor M Alexander seconded, a motion that tree 'T4' be excluded from TPO 569 at Saffron Meadow, Standon.

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, this motion was declared CARRIED.

The Committee supported the Director's recommendation regarding the resurvey and revocation of Tree Preservation Orders (TPOs) numbered 49, 167, 171 and 345 on the basis now detailed. The Committee also approved the Director's recommendation in respect of replacement TPOs numbered 566, 567, 568 and 569 on the basis now detailed, subject to the removal of tree 'T4' from TPO 569.

RESOLVED – that (A) TPOs numbered 566, 567, 568 and 569 be confirmed, subject to the removal of tree 'T4' from TPO 569; and

(B) TPOs numbered 49, 167, 171 and 345 be revoked.

53 ITEMS FOR REPORTING AND NOTING

RESOLVED - that the following reports be noted:

- (A) Appeals against refusal of planning permission / non determination;
- (B) Planning Appeals lodged;
- (C) Planning Appeals: Inquiry and Informal Hearing dates; and
- (D) Planning Statistics.

The meeting closed at 9.12 pm

Chairman	
Date	